
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
STUDY SESSION/MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                        TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 27, 2017                                                                                          EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL CAREER CENTER 
300 LA FONDA AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Study Session 6th Dec 2017 - Page 1 of 3 

 Item Purpose / Support 

 Agenda  

   

1. Convene Closed Session 5:30 p.m. 

1.1. Roll Call  

1.2. Public Comments Prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda. 

   

2. Closed Session Items  

2.1. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957) 

Information 

2.2. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code 54957.6) 

SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update to and 
receive direction from the Trustees regarding negotiations 
with the GSCFT for 2017-18. 

2.3. Real Property Negotiations (Govt. Code 
54956.8) 

Address: 255 Swift St., Santa Cruz, CA                              
Agency Negotiator: Mr. Gaffney                                    
Negotiating Parties: Gateway School                                                                                  
Under Negotiation: Terms of Agreements 

Address: 133 Mission St., Santa Cruz, CA                        
Agency Negotiator:  Mr. Gaffney                                                
Purpose: Update and Board Direction 

   

3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 

3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  

3.2. Agenda changes, additions or deletions  

   

4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 

Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 

1 of 44



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
STUDY SESSION/MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                        TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 27, 2017                                                                                          EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL CAREER CENTER 
300 LA FONDA AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Study Session 6th Dec 2017 - Page 2 of 3 

 Item Purpose / Support 

   

5. Approval of Minutes  

5.1. Minutes of November 27, 2017  

   

6. General Public Business  

   

6.1. Consent Agenda  

6.1.1. Business Services: Contracts & Agreements  

6.1.1.1. Contract: Ifland Survey - Gault Elementary  

6.1.1.2. Contract: Kier & Wright Civil Engineers & 
Surveyors - Mission Hill MS 

 

6.1.1.3. Contract: Kier & Wright Civil Engineers & 
Surveyors - Westlake Elementary 

 

6.1.1.4. Contract: Max Builders - Small Schools stairs 
and risers 

 

   

6.2. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  

6.2.1. Board Study Session: Budget Development Staff will present information for the Board to inform future 
decisions. 

   

7. Adjournment  

 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District 
Office, Superintendent’s Office, Room 303, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting 
as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in 
open session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be 
considered in closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Nancy 
Lentz by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 

2 of 44

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
STUDY SESSION/MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                        TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 27, 2017                                                                                          EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL CAREER CENTER 
300 LA FONDA AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Study Session 6th Dec 2017 - Page 3 of 3 

 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Nancy Lentz por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 

 
Board Meeting Information 

1. The Regular Meeting on December 13, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

2. The Annual Meeting of the Santa Cruz City Schools Finance Authority on December 13, 2017, 
immediately following the adjournment of the Regular Meeting on December 13, 2017, will be held 
in the County Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

3. The Regular Meeting on January 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

4. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: District Goals, Resources & Alignment on January 31, 
2018, 6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, 
CA. 

5. The Regular Meeting on February 14, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

6. The Regular Meeting on February 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

7. The Regular Meeting on March 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

8. The Regular Meeting on March 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

9. The Regular Meeting on April 18, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

10. The Regular Meeting on April 25, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

11. The Regular Meeting on May 9, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

12. The Regular Meeting/Board Self-Evaluation/Study Session for the Budget: May Revise on May 23, 
2018, 6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, 
CA. 

13. The Regular Meeting on June 13, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

14. The Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

 

3 of 44



This page has been left blank



 

 

    
 MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 

OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 

November 27, 2017 
 
 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. in the Harbor High 
School Career Center, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:00 p.m. in the Harbor 
High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Deedee Perez-Granados Cynthia Ranii  Jeremy Shonick    
Patty Threet  Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Tracy-Proulx welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular 
Meeting of the Board of Education.  
 
Agenda Changes 
The Board of Education approved Item 6.2.4. New Business: Bartos Architecture Agreement for Bond Projects 
Program Management Services to immediately follow Item 6.2.1. New Business: Career Technical Education 
Grant Applications. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. MSP (Ranii/Vestal) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of the Regular Meeting on 

November 8, 2017 as submitted.   
 
6.1  Closed Session Actions 

1. The Board of Education conferred regarding the properties at 255 Swift Street and 133  
 Mission Street in Santa Cruz, CA and the Board of Education provided direction on these 

matters. 

5 of 44



 

 

 
ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 

6.2.1. New Business: Career Technical Education Grant Applications 
Facility Services Director Miller reported to the Board of Education regarding this matter.  Mark Bartos 
from Bartos Architecture was also on hand to answer questions for the Trustees.  Proposition 51 
includes $500 million to construct/modernize CTE facilities as well as purchase equipment on 
comprehensive high school sites. Joint Powers Authorities currently operating CTE programs may 
qualify for modernization funds. On August 23, 2017, the State Allocation Board approved $125 million 
for the next Career Technical Education Facilities Program (CTEFP) funding cycle. Applications (PDF) are 
now being accepted through November 29th. This is a competitive grant process and applications must 
score at least 105 points for consideration of funding.  SCCS will submit two CTE Proposition 51 Facility 
Program applications. These two applications are a joint effort to secure funds for a new building at 
Santa Cruz High School to house the Santa Cruz High Institute of Technology. The SCHS Institute of 
Technology would include a CTE Computer Science pathway as well as CTE pathways within the Arts, 
Media, and Entertainment CTE sector (e.g., Web Design, Digital Photography, & Video Production).    
SCCS will submit for additional Proposition 51 dollars for CTE Programs at Soquel and Harbor High 
Schools in future rounds of funding.  There is no risk to applying for the grants.  If SCCS receives the 
grants but decides on other construction options, we can turn them down.  Following questions, 
comments and discussion, MSP (Vestal/Ranii) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Career 
Technical Education grant applications.  

 
6.2.4. New Business: Bartos Architecture Agreement for Bond Projects Program Management Services 

Mr. Gaffney recommended approval of the agreement to appoint Bartos Architecture to provide 
supplemental program management services as a program advisor and to assist district staff as needed 
in implementing Measures A & B.  Services will be provided on an hourly basis as needed for $25-$175 
per hour, depending on the services required.  During discussion, the Trustees requested quarterly 
expenditure reports for bond projects.  At the conclusion of comments, questions and discussion, MSP 
(Shonick/Coonerty) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the agreement for Bond Projects 
Management Services with Bartos Architecture. 

 
6.2.2. New Business: Approve Bond Oversight Committee Member(s) 

Mr. Gaffney reported that, in conjunction with Education Code Section 15278 and with the Bylaws 
adopted by the SCCS Board, the Board is requested to approve the appointments of Steve Houser, John 
McKelvey, Kurt Meeker and William Tysseling to the Measures A and B Citizens Bond Oversight 
Committee as representatives of the community at large.  Each member will serve a term of two years. 
The District is continuing to accept applications from interested parties for a representative of a 
taxpayer’s organization. When a candidate is identified, their application will be brought to the Board 
for approval.  During discussion, the Board of Education directed District Administration to move the 
meeting scheduled for November 28 to the following week, in order to publish the meeting agenda in 
accordance with Brown Act Requirements.  Board Member Threet expressed concern regarding the 
thoroughness of extended community outreach in the applicant process and concern about selecting 
members who are spouses of district employees.  Dr. Coonerty, Dr. Ranii and Board President Tracy-
Proulx felt the District exercised due diligence.  Dr. Perez-Granados suggested that, at the conclusion of 
this original committee two-year term, the District may provide a more comprehensive outreach 
process to select committee members from the largest possible community applicant pool.  Following 
comments, questions and discussion, each of the BOC Committee Member Applicants were voted on 
separately, as follows:  

6 of 44



 

 

Mr. Tysseling:  MSP (Threet/Coonerty) 7-0, the Board approved this applicant. 
Mr. Houser: MSP (Perez-Granados/Vestal) 6-1, the Board approved this applicant.  Ms. Threet 

voted no. 
Mr. Meeker: MSP (Vestal/Perez-Granados) 6-1, the Board approved this applicant.  Ms. Threet 

voted no. 
Mr. McKelvey: MSP (Vestal/Coonerty) 7-0, the Board approved this applicant.  

 
6.2.3. New Business: Construction Projects Manager Job Description 

Mr. Gaffney and Mr. Miller recommended approval of the job description.  This position will provide 
leadership for our bond program and facilities department under the general direction of the Director 
of Maintenance/Operations/Transportation. The position will serve as a district liaison with school 
staff, architects, construction managers, contractors, related consultants, government agencies and 
other district administration.  The position will support the strategic implementation of our Facilities 
Master Plan and our Bond Program.  A Bond Organizational Chart and an Organizational 
Responsibilities document were presented to illustrate how overall bond program duties and 
responsibilities will be served.   Following questions, comments and discussion, MSP (Coonerty/Perez-
Granados) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Construction Projects Manager job description. 

 
6.2.5. New Business: Cen Con Construction Estimate 

Mr. Miller reported that on 2/7/17, a large eucalyptus tree fell on portable classroom #9 and a storage 
building at Adult Education during a severe winter storm. An insurance claim is pending. As part of the 
work to replace the portable, it is necessary to disconnect the utilities from the existing building, 
demolish the damaged portable and connect the new portable when it is in place. Cen-Con Inc. has 
submitted a proposal to do this work following Monterey Bay Air Resources Board procedures and 
requirements.  The cost of the work will be covered by the reimbursement from the insurance claim.  
Mr. Miller recommended approval of the estimate.  MSP (Ranii/Coonerty) 7-0, the Board of Education 
approved the Cen Con Construction Estimate. 

 
7. Adjournment of Meeting 

As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President Tracy-Proulx 
adjourned this Regular Meeting at 7:24 p.m. 

 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 

1. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: Budget Development on December 6, 2017, 6:00 p.m., will 
be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 

2. The Regular Meeting on December 13, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

3. The Annual Meeting of the Santa Cruz City Schools Finance Authority on December 13, 2017, will be 
held immediately following the adjournment of the Regular Board Meeting of December 13, 2017, in 
the County Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

4. The Regular Meeting on January 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

5. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: District Goals, Resources & Alignment on January 31, 2018, 
6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 

6. The Regular Meeting on February 14, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

7 of 44



 

 

7. The Regular Meeting on February 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

8. The Regular Meeting on March 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

9. The Regular Meeting on March 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

10. The Regular Meeting on April 18, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

11. The Regular Meeting on April 25, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

12. The Regular Meeting on May 9, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

13. The Regular Meeting/Board Self-Evaluation/Study Session for the Budget: May Revise on May 23, 
2018, 6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 

14. The Regular Meeting on June 13, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

15. The Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 

 
 

* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 
recording: 

 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Deb Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 

8 of 44

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html


  AGENDA ITEM:  6.1.1 
Cvr Contracts Final 

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
AGENDA ITEM: Contracts and Consultant Services Agreements 
 
MEETING DATE: December 6, 2017  
 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Ratify contracts and consultant services agreements executed pursuant to Board Policy 3300. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On June 14, 2017, the Board of Education delegated authority to enter into contracts on behalf 
of Santa Cruz City Schools and to purchase supplies, materials, apparatus, equipment and 
services up to the amounts specified in Public Contract Code 20111 and Education Code Section 
17605 to the Superintendent or designees, and required that the Board of Trustees ratify 
contracts within sixty (60) days of incurring the expense. 
 
The following contracts are presented for ratification: 
 
  Contract Cost 
4.1.1. Business Services Contracts & Agreements  
 1. Ifland Survey – surveying & mapping services at Gault Elementary $22,700.00 
 2. Kier & Wright Civil Engineers & Surveyors – topographic and utility 

survey services at Mission Hill Middle School 
$26,400.00 

 3. Kier & Wright Civil Engineers & Surveyors – topographic and utility 
survey services at Westlake Elementary School 

$26,900.00 

 4. Max Builders Inc. – replacement of stair treads and risers at 
Branciforte Small Schools 

$41,017.00 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $117,017 Measures A & B 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 

9 of 44



This page has been left blank



 AGENDA ITEM:  6.1.1.1 
 
 

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Contract with Ifland Survey for Gault Elementary 
 
MEETING DATE: December 6, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve contract with Ifland Survey for surveying and mapping services at Gault Elementary. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Survey information is needed for ADA and path of travel plans as well as utility location for 
construction at Gault Elementary School.  Ifland Survey was the lowest responsive quote 
received for this work.  Survey work will provide information to the architect to design required 
ADA path of travel and other site related items. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$22,700.00 to be paid from Measure B bond funds. 
 

This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 

Prepared by: Trevor Miller 

11 of 44



This page has been left blank



5300 Soquel Avenue, #101      Santa Cruz, CA 95062      Tel 831.426.7941     Fax 831.426.6266 
 

M:\Docs\GIA\Proposals\2017\SCCSD_modernization_gault_102517.docx 

 
 
October 25, 2017 
 
 
Laszlo Petrik 
Project Manager 
Bartos Architecture  
1730 S. Amphlett Blvd., Suite 225 
San Mateo, CA  94402 
 
RE:   Surveying & Mapping Services for Santa Cruz City Schools Modernization Projects 
  GAULT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: 1320 Seabright Ave, Santa Cruz, CA 95062 (Revised) 
 
Dear Laszlo: 
 
As requested, we hereby submit our revised proposal, without the ground surveying and mapping line 
item, for the following surveying and mapping services:  
 
SITE:  GAULT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL: 1320 Seabright Ave, Santa Cruz, CA 95062 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 
1. RECORD BOUNDARY 
  Perform  record  research and  field surveying as needed  to compute and plot a  record property 

boundary relative to the topographic survey work.  This work shall be based on a preliminary title 
report or deed description provided by the district and shall be limited in that it is a best fit of the 
record boundary based on field evidence and record deed descriptions.  
 

2. RECORD EASEMENT PLOTTING 
Based on record documents, we will compute and plot the record easements relative to the record 
boundary (item 1).  This work shall be based on and subject to a preliminary title report provided 
by the district and shall be limited in that it is a best fit of the record easement locations.  

 
3. SUBSURFACE UTILITY LOCATION WORK 

Prior to the UAV and ground survey, we will contract with a Subsurface Utility Location Contractor 
to perform utility location and marking services in the areas designated by the architect. This item 
also  includes  our  effort  to  coordinate with  contractor  in  the  field  and  upon  completion,  the 
additional effort to survey locate and map the marked locations for inclusion in the topographic 
base map and as further described under  item 5.   Due to the unknown effort necessary for this 
item, the line fee is an allowance to complete the work, subject to actual subcontractor costs, time 
and materials.  
 

13 of 44



5300 Soquel Avenue, #101      Santa Cruz, CA 95062      Tel 831.426.7941     Fax 831.426.6266 
 

M:\Docs\GIA\Proposals\2017\SCCSD_modernization_gault_102517.docx 

4. UAV AERIAL ORTHOPHOTO &  1’ CONTOUR MAP 
  Establish horizontal and vertical survey control based upon previous project control (or on State 

Plane Coordinates and NAVD88 datum).  Set or confirm project site benchmark.  Perform a UAV 
(drone) aerial survey and produce a geo‐referenced aerial orthomosiac (jpg or tif) with ~0.2’ or 
better pixel resolution for drawing background.  Process Point cloud and 3D surface from aerial 
photos and develop a 1’ interval contour map and 15’ grid spot elevations in open areas. 

 
5. ADDITIONAL SERVICES BUDGET 
  After  review of  topographic map  submittal, we will perform additional  topographic  survey  for 

design purposes within the area or areas selected by the architect. This item will be provided on a 
time and material basis. The fee estimate is for 1 day of field time and associated office mapping 
work. 

 
FEE SCHEDULE 
 

1. RECORD BOUNDARY SURVEY .......................................... $ 6,000   
2. RECORD EASEMENT PLOTTING ........................................ $ 2,300   
3. SUB‐SURFACE UTILITY LOCATION WORK ......................... $ 6,400 
4. UAV AERIAL ORTHOPHOTO & 1’ CONTOURS ................... $ 5,000 
5. ADDITIONAL SERVICES BUDGET ...................................... $ 3,000 

 
TOTAL FEE ..................................... $22,700   

 
Public entities or projects which use public funds or grants typically require prevailing wage rates for field 
services, which is the basis of our fees.  We have prepared the included scope based on our understanding 
of the project survey needs as outlined in the RFP.  . 

 
  Our fees for the above services are subject to the attached general provisions, Exhibit A.  Additional items, 

services and/or reimbursables would be subject to the attached hourly rates, Exhibit B.  If this proposal 
meets your approval, please return a signed copy to our office.    
 
Sincerely, 

 
 

Gary R. Ifland 
President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Authorization to Proceed 
I/we agree to the scope, terms and provisions  in 

the  above  proposal  and  hereby  request  Ifland 

Survey to proceed accordingly with the following: 

□ ITEMS __________________ 

 
 
________________________________________ 
Signature        Date 
 
________________________________________ 
Printed Name        Title 

 

14 of 44



  

EXHIBIT A  -  GENERAL CONTRACT PROVISIONS  
 

Client and Surveyor agree that the following provisions shall be part 
of their agreement: 
 
1. Ownership & Use of Work Product.  Client acknowledges that all original papers, 
documents, maps, surveys and other work product of Surveyor, and copies thereof, produced by 
Surveyor pursuant to this agreement, except documents which are required to be filed with public 
agencies, shall remain the property of Surveyor.  Client agrees not to use or permit any other 
person to use final maps, exhibits, legal descriptions, surveys, or other work product prepared by 
Surveyor, which work product(s) are/is not final.  Client agrees that Surveyor is not responsible 
for any such use of nonfinal work product and waives any right to claim liability against Surveyor 
therefor. 
 Client further agrees that final work product is for the sole use of Client for the specific 
purpose described in this agreement.  Such final work product may not be altered or reproduced 
in any way nor used on any other project or for any other purposes than as specifically authorized 
by Surveyor in writing prior to any such use, alteration, or reproduction. 
    Upon request by client or client's representative, Surveyor agrees to provide client with 
copies of drawings prepared in CAD format (.DWG or .DXF) for the client's use.  Copies shall be 
provided subject to a $25.00 media & processing fee per drawing plus applicable shipping 
charges, if any. 
    It is understood that the CAD drawings and data therein are subject to the "final" (stamped 
and signed hard copy) plans.  In the event of any inconsistencies between the CAD data and the 
"final" plans, the "final" plans shall always prevail. 
    Any use of the CAD drawings or data by the client or client's successors, assigns or 
representatives shall be at the client's sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to Surveyor. 
 Furthermore, client shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold harmless the 
Surveyor from all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including attorney fees arising out of or 
resulting therefrom.  
2.  Documents provided by Client.    Client agrees to provide Surveyor with any and all 
documents necessary to identify the ownership, location and condition of the property, including, 
but not limited to, deeds, maps, title information, and permits, unless Surveyor agrees to provide 
said documents as a part of services set forth herein; and to obtain for Surveyor the authorization 
of the owner to enter upon the property for the purpose of conducting Surveyor's work thereon. 
3.  Billing.  All fees and other charges attributable to this agreement will be billed by Surveyor 
monthly and shall be due and payable by Client at the time of billing unless otherwise specified in 
this agreement.  Client agrees that all billings from Surveyor to Client are correct, conclusive, and 
binding on Client unless Client, within (10) days from the date of such billing, notifies Surveyor, in 
writing, of its objection stating the alleged inaccuracies, discrepancies, or errors in the billing.  
4.  Late Charges.  Client agrees to pay in addition to the billed amount for any payment thirty 
(30) or more days late, a monthly late payment charge of one and one-half percent (1 1/2%) per 
month on the unpaid balance specified in such billing.  In the event the then legal rate for late 
charges is less than one and one-half percent (1 1/2%) per month, then Client agrees to pay the 
maximum rate permitted by law. 
5.  Suspension or Termination of Performance.  In addition to any other rights Surveyor may 
have for default of Client, if Client fails to pay Surveyor within thirty (30) days after invoices are 
rendered, Client agrees Surveyor shall have the right to consider such default in payment a 
material breach of his agreement, and, upon written notice, the duties, obligations, and 
responsibilities of Surveyor under this agreement may be suspended or terminated at Surveyor's 
sole option. 
6.  Changed Conditions.  In the event Client  or Client’s agent discovers or becomes aware of 
changed plans, field or other conditions which necessitate clarification, adjustments, 
modifications or other changes, Client agrees to notify Surveyor in writing, and engage Surveyor 
to prepare the necessary clarifications, adjustments, modifications or other changes to Surveyor's 
work before further activity proceeds.   Surveyor may charge for these changes as Additional 
Services described below. 
7.  Additional Services.  Client agrees that if services not specified in this agreement are 
provided or if Client requests services not specified herein, Client agrees to timely pay for all such 
services as extra work at the rates set forth (as follows) in Exhibit "B" attached hereto and by this 
reference incorporated herein.  In the event Surveyor’s fee schedule changes due to any 
increase of costs such as the granting of wage increases and/or other employee benefits to field 
or office employees due to the terms of any labor agreement, or rise in the cost of living, during 
the lifetime of this agreement, a percentage increase shall be applied to all remaining 
compensation. 
8.  Restaking.  In the event that Surveyor's staking is destroyed, damaged or disturbed by an 
act of God or parties other than Surveyor, the cost of restaking shall be paid for by Client as extra 
work.  Client acknowledges that the work performed pursuant to this agreement is based upon 
field and other conditions existing at the time of preparation of Surveyor's work.  Client further 
acknowledges that field and other conditions may require clarification, adjustments, modifications 
and other changes necessary to reflect changed field or other conditions.  Any verbal direction for 
restake made by client or client’s contractor to Surveyor or surveyor’s field crew shall constitute 
an agreement for any such restake charges.  Written authorization is not necessary. 
9.  Payment of Costs.  Client shall pay the costs of checking and recording fees, zoning and 
application fees, aerial topography fees, and all other fees, permits, bond premiums, title  
 

company charges, blueprints and reproductions, and all other charges not specifically covered by 
the terms of this agreement.   
10. Records of Survey.  Client acknowledges and agrees that if Surveyor provides surveying 
services, which require the filing of a Record of Survey in accordance with Business and 
Professions Code Section 8762, all cost of preparation, examination and filing of such Record of 
Survey will be paid for by Client as extra work. 
11. Governmental Actions.  Surveyor shall not be liable for damages resulting from the actions 
or inactions of governmental agencies including, but not limited to, permit processing, 
environmental impact reports, dedications, general plans and amendments thereto, zoning 
matters, annexations or consolidations, use or conditional use permits, project or plan approvals, 
and building permits. 
12. Performance of Others.  Client acknowledges that Surveyor is not responsible for the 
performance of work by third parties including, but not limited to, engineers, architects, 
contractors, subcontractors, or suppliers of Client. 
13.  Delays.  Surveyor is not responsible for delay caused by activities or factors beyond 
Surveyor's control. 
14.  Lien Rights.  This agreement shall not be construed to alter, affect or waive any lien or 
stop notice right, which Surveyor may have for performance of work pursuant to this agreement.  
15.  Hold Harmless.  Client agrees to be solely and completely responsible for jobsite 
conditions during the course of Surveyor's work, including safety of persons and property. 
16.    Limitation of Surveyor's Liability.  Surveyor shall maintain Workmen's Compensation 
Insurance, Public Liability and Professional Liability Insurance.  Surveyor shall provide 
certificates of coverage upon client's written request.  Surveyor and its officers and 
employees shall not be liable for any property damage, personal injury or other loss, cost, 
damage or expense resulting from any cause (including without limitation breach of contract, 
negligent acts, errors or omissions) beyond the amounts of coverage of Surveyor's said 
insurance policies.  To the fullest extend permitted by law, the total liability, in the aggregate, 
of Gary Ifland and Associates, Inc. and Gary Ifland and Associates, Inc.'s directors, partners, 
employees, agents and Gary Ifland and Associates Inc.'s consultants, and any of them, to 
CLIENT and anyone claiming by, through or under CLIENT, for any and all claims, losses, 
costs or damages whatsoever arising out of, resulting from or in any way related to the 
Agreement from any cause or causes, including but not limited to the negligence, 
professional errors or omissions, strict liability or breach of contract of officers, directors, 
partners, employees, agents of any of them, shall be the lesser of the total compensation 
received by this Agreement or $50,000.00. 
17.  No Representations.  Surveyor makes no representation concerning any estimated 
quantities or calculated areas made in connection with maps, documents or other work product 
other than that all such calculations and estimates are estimates only and Surveyor shall not be 
responsible for fluctuations therein. 
18.  Waiver.  Waiver by Surveyor of any term, condition, or covenant, or breach of any term, 
condition, or covenant, shall not constitute the waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant, or 
the breach of any other term, condition, or covenant, and any such waiver shall not constitute a 
continuing waiver thereof.  No waiver, consent or approval by Surveyor or modification or 
amendment thereof shall be effective unless in writing signed by the Surveyor. 
19.  Advisory Only.  Surveyor shall only act in an advisory capacity to Client in governmental 
relations.  Client shall be responsible for all decision making activities therein. 
20.  Validity.  If any term, condition, or covenant of this agreement is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this 
agreement shall be valid and binding on Client and Surveyor. 
21.  Jurisdiction.  This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of California. 
22.  Venue.  Client agrees that in the event Client institutes any action, litigation, arbitration or 
mediation to enforce or interpret the provisions of this agreement, such action shall be brought 
and adjudicated in the appropriate court in the county in which Surveyor's principal place of 
business is located, and Client waives the right to bring, try or remove such action to any other 
county or judicial district. 
23.  Costs of Dispute Resolution.  In the event that Client instituting a suit against Surveyor, 
either directly by complaint or by way of cross-complaint, including a cross-complaint for 
indemnity, for alleged negligence, error, omission, or other failure to perform, wherein Client fails 
to obtain a judgment in Client's favor, the lawsuit is dismissed, or judgment is rendered for 
Surveyor, Client agrees to pay Surveyor immediately following dismissal of the case or upon 
entry of judgment all costs of defense, including, but without limitation, attorneys' fees, expert 
witness fees, court costs, and any and all other expenses of defense. 
24.   Inurement.  This agreement shall inure to and be binding upon the heirs, executors, 
successors and assigns of Client and Surveyor.   
25.  Entire Agreement.  This agreement contains the entire agreement between Client and 
Surveyor relating to the project and the provision of services to the project. 
26. Acceptance and Commencement.  By execution of this agreement Client accepts the 
terms hereof, acknowledges receipt of a copy hereof, including all exhibits, and authorizes 
Surveyor to proceed with the work.  In the event Client is not the owner of the property. Client 
represents that Client has obtained permission from said owner for Surveyor to proceed.      
        

15 of 44



 EXHIBIT B 

  
 GARY IFLAND & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

(dba IFLAND SURVEY) 
5300 Soquel Ave, Suite #101 

Santa Cruz, CA 95065 
 

 HOURLY RATES 2017 

 

OFFICE SERVICES 

Principal Surveyor ............................................................................................................ $ 200.00 

Project Surveyor II (CA Licensed Surveyor) ....................................................................... 140.00  

Project Surveyor I ............................................................................................................... 120.00 

Survey Technician .............................................................................................................. 100.00 

CAD Technician I / II ................................................................................................ 80.00 / 100.00 

Clerical Assistant .................................................................................................................  60.00 

 

FIELD SURVEY SERVICES  (Prevailing Wage Rates) 

Survey Crew (2 persons) .................................................................................................... 340.00  

GPS or Robotic Survey (1 person) ..................................................................................... 240.00 

3D Laser Scan Survey or UAV Survey (1 person) .............................................................. 240.00 

Survey Technician .............................................................................................................. 140.00 

 
HOURLY RATE NOTES/ ADJUSTMENTS  

 
- Consultation meetings and telephone consultations are billed at the hourly rates indicated.  
- Field services are billed portal-to-portal with a 2-hour minimum charge.   
- Hourly rates shown are for ordinary surveying services and include all payroll, office overhead, taxes, 

supplies, insurance and local transportation. Higher rates (not less than 1.5 times standard rates) are 
applicable for extra-ordinary services such as: court appearances, court preparation, depositions, expert 
witness opinions, professional testimony, special certifications, etc.   . 

- Invoices 30 days past due will be assessed a late fee of 1.5% per month, $25 monthly minimum. 
- Add 2.5% (min $200) for all projects requiring a waiver of subrogation endorsement on liability 

insurance. 
  
 
FEES & REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 

Check Prints 
18x24....................... $  8.00 ea 
24x36....................... $ 10.00 ea 
30x42....................... $ 15.00 ea 
 
CAD Plotting  
Bond (24x36) .......... $ 10.00 ea 
Color (24x36) .......... $ 20.00 ea 
Mylar (18x26) .......... $ 20.00 ea 

Other Charges 
ROS SC County  .....  $ 460.00 
Record Deed ...........  $ 6.00 / pg 
Record Map.............  $10.00 / pg 
 
CAD Files* 
Media....................... $ 25.00 ea 
Duplicates ............... $ 10.00 ea 
Via email ................. $ 25.00 ea 

Express Mail / FEDEX 
Letter ....................... $ 30.00 
Pak/Tube ................. $ 50.00 
 
Mileage 
within 30 mi. ............   no charge 
beyond 30 mi ..........  $ 0.50/mile 
 

 
 
For items not listed above,( ie, outside services and consultants, survey monuments, filing, checking, 
recording) actual expenses are invoiced at cost plus 15%.  *Customization of CAD files including file format 
and other modifications for use by others shall be billed per hourly rates.  All rates are subject to annual, 
adjustments.     
                                                                                                                                                              rev. 08/16 

16 of 44



17 of 44



This page has been left blank



 AGENDA ITEM: 6.1.1.2  
 
 

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Contract with Kier & Wright Civil Engineers & Surveyors, Inc. 
   For Mission Hill Middle School 
 

MEETING DATE:           December 6, 2017 
 
FROM:                            Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:                    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve contract with Kier & Wright Civil Engineers & Surveyors, Inc. for topographic and utility 
survey services at Mission Hill Middle School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Survey information is needed for ADA and path of travel plans as well as utility location for 
construction at Mission Hill Middle School.  Kier & Wright Civil Engineers & Surveyors, Inc. was 
the lowest responsive quote received for this site.  The survey work will provide information to 
the architect to design the required ADA path of travel and other site related items. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$26,400.00  to be paid from Measures A bond funds. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Trevor Miller 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

19 of 44



This page has been left blank



Proposal for Surveying Services                     Mission Hill Middle School

KIER & WRIGHT CIVIL ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, INC. 

3350 Scott Boulevard, Bldg. 22  Santa Clara, California 95054  408-727-6665  408-727-5641   - 1 - 

October 25, 2017 

Attn: Mark Bartos 
Bartos Architecture 
1730 S Amphlett Blvd, Suite 225 
San Mateo, CA 94402 

RE:  Request for Proposal 

Topographic/Utility Survey 
Mission Hill Middle School 

Dear Mark: 

Thank you  for  considering Kier & Wright  for  your  surveying needs.   We have extensive 
experience with many schools  in the Bay Area and welcome the opportunity to partner 
with the Sant Cruz City School District and Bartos Architecture on your above referenced 
site.  

Included within this proposal are several items: 
- Survey Scope and Approach 
- Relevant experience 
- Company profile  
- Key personnel 
- Fee Breakdown for our services 

We look forward to working with you on this project and hope this proposal meets with 
your approval.  If so, please sign below and return to me via mail or facsimile. Thank you 
again  for  the  opportunity  to  provide  this  proposal  and  please  feel  free  to  contact me 
directly with any questions or comments. 

Sincerely, 
KIER & WRIGHT 

Ryan M. Amaya, P.L.S. 8134 
Survey Manager 
www.kierwright.com 

Approved by ____________________________________ Date _____________________           

21 of 44

ramaya
Ryan Amaya



Proposal for Surveying Services                       Mission Hill Middle School                            

 

 
KIER & WRIGHT CIVIL ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, INC. 

 
3350 Scott Boulevard, Bldg. 22  Santa Clara, California 95054  408-727-6665  408-727-5641   - 2 - 

 

SURVEY SCOPE & APPROACH 
Our scope, approach and understanding of the survey tasks are: 

1. Base mapping 
2. Field survey for improvements 
3. Utility Survey and subsurface improvements 
4. Compilation of field survey and utility survey 

 
1)  BASE MAPPING  
The Aerial topographic survey will show all surface features visible from an airplane such 
as curbs, gutters,  sidewalk, driveways, crosswalks,  striping,  roof overhangs  tree canopy, 
shrubs, spot elevations and contours for the entire area of work as shown on Exhibit A. 
The  survey  will  be  supplemented  with  conventional  surveying  to  show  missing 
information that was not picked up from the photogrammetry due to tree canopies. It will 
also show the property lines and easements based on title report to be provided. Existing 
on‐site  utilities  will  be  shown  based  on  available  plans  and  field  survey  as  described 
below.  
  
2)  FIELD SURVEY FOR IMPROVEMENTS 
The field survey for improvements will consist of detailed design level topographic survey 
which will include;  

a) Location of trees, including trunk diameter sizes 
b) Face of buildings 
c) Finished floor elevations of structures. 
d)  Utilities as described below 
e) Additional Ground elevations in areas of tree canopies 

 
3)  UTILITY SURVEY AND SUBSURFACE IMPROVEMENTS 
As  the  base  mapping  is  compiled  supplemental  field  survey  of  the  existing  utility 
infrastructure  within  the  areas  of  work  will  be  surveyed  including  but  not  limited  to, 
Sewer and Storm manholes including Inverts, water meters, water valves, gas valve, any 
underground  utility  paint  markings  and  any  additional  surface  utilities  that  can  be 
surveyed.  
 
Underground utilities will  be  located  by  Coast Wide Utility  Locators  and will work  as  a 
sub‐consultant  to  Kier  &  Wright  and  will  attempt  to  locate  all  detectable  utilities  as 
requested  according  to  the USA North Guidelines,  California  Code  Section  4216‐4216.9 
within the area of work. Please note that all underground utilities may not be able to be 
located, particularly plastic pipe. 
 
4)  COMPILATION OF FIELD SURVEYS AND RESEARCH DATA 
As above tasks are initiated our office personnel will begin compilation of all the record 
research  data.  This  work  includes  drafting  of  the  field  survey  data,  record  map 
information  and  utility  measurements  taken  in  the  field.  This  will  run  concurrently  to 
maximize  efficiency  and  reduce  lead‐time,  as  the  field  crews will  be  working  one  step 
ahead of office personnel as they deliver their field data.  

22 of 44



Proposal for Surveying Services                       Mission Hill Middle School                            

 

 
KIER & WRIGHT CIVIL ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, INC. 

 
3350 Scott Boulevard, Bldg. 22  Santa Clara, California 95054  408-727-6665  408-727-5641   - 3 - 

 

 
RELEVANT EXPERIENCE 
Kier  &  Wright  has  been  involved  with  schools  since  its  inception  in  1972.  We  have 
competed over 1,000 projects at different schools throughout the Bay Area and Central 
Valley.  The  following  is  a  brief  description  of  a  few  recent  projects  that  are  similar  in 
scope to what is being requested in this RFP. 
 
RELEVANT PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS 
Project Name:   Sacred Heart School ‐ Atherton 
 
Description:  Kier & Wright has been working with Sacred Heart since 1991. One 

of our recent projects consist of surveying there 61 Acres campus. 
Kier & Wright managed and  coordinating  the  entire  survey  Scope 
including  aerial  photogrammetry,  field  survey  of  entire  campus 
include  detailed  survey  for  track  and  field  renovation.  We  also 
completed a campus wide utility survey and keep it updated so the 
school  has  a  comprehensive  utility  survey. We  have  developed  a 
strong  relationship  with  Sacred  Heart  and  continue  providing 
excellent surveying services for the school. 

 
Project Name:   Bellarmine College Preparatory 
 
Description:  Kier  &  Wright  has  been  working  with  Bellarmine  since  1990. 

Recently  we  have  completed  over  13  projects  with  Bellarmine, 
these project consist of boundary survey,  topographic survey, civil 
engineering  design,  and  construction  staking  for  gymnasiums, 
academic  buildings,  theater/fine  arts  buildings  and  there  track  & 
fields.  We  have  developed  a  strong  relationship  with  Bellarmine 
and continue providing excellent surveying services for the school. 

 
Project Name:   Campbell Union High School District 
Description:  Kier & Wright  has  been  doing work  for  the  Campbell  Union High 

School District since 2005 and we have worked at every high school 
with  in  the district and have completed over 28 projects with  the 
district.  These  projects  consist  of  boundary  surveys,  topographic 
survey,  civil  engineering  design  and  construction  staking  for 
gymnasiums,  theater/fine  arts  building,  track  &  field,  solar 
installation  and  beautification  projects.  We  have  developed  a 
strong  relationship  with  the  Campbell  Union  High  School  District 
and continue providing excellent surveying service for the school. 

23 of 44



Proposal for Surveying Services                       Mission Hill Middle School                            

 

 
KIER & WRIGHT CIVIL ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, INC. 

 
3350 Scott Boulevard, Bldg. 22  Santa Clara, California 95054  408-727-6665  408-727-5641   - 4 - 

 

COMPANY PROFILE 
Kier  &  Wright  Civil  Engineers  &  Surveyors,  Inc.  has  provided  comprehensive  civil 
engineering  and  land  surveying  services  to  both  public  and  private  sector  clients  since 
1972.  Services offered include street and highway design, municipal consultation, utility 
engineering,  and  the  preparation  of  civil  engineering  plans  for  residential,  commercial 
and  industrial  site  developments  throughout  the  Bay  Area  and  Central  Valley.    Kier  & 
Wright has offices located in the cities of Santa Clara, Livermore, Manteca and Ventura. 
 
Kier  &  Wright  is  currently  staffed  by  150  employees,  including  seven  registered  civil 
engineers and eight licensed land surveyors.  Additional staff includes 23 civil engineering 
and  land  surveying  personnel  and  twelve  to  fifteen  surveying  crews  depending  on 
construction staking demands throughout the year. 
 
Kier & Wright  is  committed  to providing efficient,  cost  effective  services  to our  clients.  
Growth  of  the  firm  has  been  due  entirely  to  referrals,  repeat  business,  and  the  firm’s 
underlying  philosophy  that  demands  the  highest  quality  professional  service, 
responsibility to client needs, timeliness and efficiency. 
 
Kier  &  Wright's  management  continually  evaluates  and  updates  procedures  and 
equipment in order to maximize efficiency and productivity.   Procedural approaches are 
determined by management to make sure projects are executed as efficiently as possible. 
 
All  of  our  field  crews  have  well  equipped  trucks  with  all  the  tools  necessary  to  work 
efficiently and safely.   More specifically, each crew carries a robotic total station, digital 
level, rods and layout staffs and data collectors.   Our crews use the Trimble S‐6 and S‐7 
Robotic  Total  Stations  with  a  Trimble  TSC3  Data  Collector  equipped  with  the  latest 
Trimble Access software. We also have experienced fulltime GPS crews that use Trimble 
R‐8  and  r‐10  GNSS  receivers  and  Trimble  Business  Center  Software,  for  adjusting  all 
traverses both conventional and Static GPS. 
 
The office personnel are all equipped with state of  the art Dell Workstation Computers 
with Intel Xeon Processors, Running Windows 10 Professional with off‐site, cloud backed‐
up data servers. All computers are equipped with Autodesk Civil 3D 2017, Our Civil and 
Survey support staff has extensive experience with AutoCAD Civil 3D applications. 
 
 
 

24 of 44



Proposal for Surveying Services                     Mission Hill Middle School

KIER & WRIGHT CIVIL ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, INC. 

3350 Scott Boulevard, Bldg. 22  Santa Clara, California 95054  408-727-6665  408-727-5641   - 5 - 

KEY PERSONNEL 
Ryan M. Amaya, Survey Manager, Professional  Land Surveyor, State of California,  L.S. 
8134 

Mr.  Amaya  has  over  19  years  of  experience  in  the  Surveying  Industry.  Mr.  Amaya’s 
experience includes construction surveying, boundary surveying, mapping and subdivision 
work  related  to  land  development.    Specific  survey  experience  includes  construction 
staking,  topographic  surveys,  bench  mark  level  circuits,  elevation  monitoring  surveys, 
tentative maps, parcel maps, final maps, condominium plans, plats and legal descriptions, 
lot line adjustments, lot combinations, reversion to acreage maps, and ALTA/ASCM Land 
Title Surveys.   He received his Professional Land Surveyor License  in 2006 and has been 
with Kier & Wright since 1999. 

ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Ryan  would  act  as  a  project  manager  for  the  project.    He  would  provide  day‐to‐day 
support  to  the  client  and  related  consultants.    He would  also  be  in  charge  of  in‐house 
support  staff  including office‐drafting  staff.   All  coordination would be processed under 
his  supervision  and  guidance.    He  would  report  directly  to  the  client  throughout  the 
project duration. 

FEE BREAKDOWN 
SURVEY SCOPE OF SERVICES 
1. Base Mapping $6,300
2. Field Survey for Improvements $4,500
3. Utility Survey and subsurface improvements $7,800
4. Compilation of field survey and research data. $6,900

Total Proposed Fee for Services:  $26,400

(End of Proposal) 

5. Utility Research Fees (charged by utility companies)        $   900

25 of 44



This page has been left blank



 AGENDA ITEM:  6.1.1.3 
 
 

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Contract with Kier & Wright Civil Engineers & Surveyors, Inc. 
   For Westlake Elementary School 
 

MEETING DATE: December 6, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve contract with Kier & Wright Civil Engineers & Surveyors, Inc. for topographic and 
utility survey services at Westlake Elementary School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Survey information is needed for ADA and path of travel plans as well as utility location for 
construction. Kier & Wright Civil Engineers & Surveyors, Inc. provided the lowest responsive 
quote received for this site. The survey work will provide information to the architect to design 
the required ADA path of travel and other site related items. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$26,900.00 to be paid from Measure B bond funds. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Trevor Miller 

27 of 44



This page has been left blank



Proposal for Surveying Services                       Westlake Elementary School                            

 

 
KIER & WRIGHT CIVIL ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, INC.

 
3350 Scott Boulevard, Bldg. 22  Santa Clara, California 95054  408-727-6665  408-727-5641   - 1 - 

 

  November 6, 2017 
 
Attn: Mark Bartos 
Bartos Architecture 
1730 S Amphlett Blvd, Suite 225 
San Mateo, CA 94402 
 
  
 
RE:  Request for Proposal 

Topographic/Utility Survey 
Westlake Elementary School 

 
Dear Mark: 
 
Thank you  for  considering Kier & Wright  for  your  surveying needs.   We have extensive 
experience with many schools  in the Bay Area and welcome the opportunity to partner 
with the Sant Cruz City School District and Bartos Architecture on your above referenced 
site.  
 
Included within this proposal are several items: 

- Survey Scope and Approach 
- Relevant experience 
- Company profile  
- Key personnel 
- Fee Breakdown for our services 

 
We look forward to working with you on this project and hope this proposal meets with 
your approval.  If so, please sign below and return to me via mail or facsimile. Thank you 
again  for  the  opportunity  to  provide  this  proposal  and  please  feel  free  to  contact me 
directly with any questions or comments. 
 
Sincerely, 
KIER & WRIGHT 
 
 
 
 
Ryan M. Amaya, P.L.S. 8134 
Survey Manager 
www.kierwright.com 
 
 
Approved by ____________________________________ Date _____________________           

29 of 44

ramaya
Ryan Amaya



Proposal for Surveying Services                       Westlake Elementary School                            

 

 
KIER & WRIGHT CIVIL ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, INC.

 
3350 Scott Boulevard, Bldg. 22  Santa Clara, California 95054  408-727-6665  408-727-5641   - 2 - 

 

SURVEY SCOPE & APPROACH 
Our scope, approach and understanding of the survey tasks are: 

1. Base mapping/Orthophoto 
2. Field survey for improvements 
3. Utility Survey and subsurface improvements 
4. Compilation of field survey and utility survey 

 
1)  BASE MAPPING / ORTHOPHOTO 
The Aerial topographic survey will show all surface features visible from an airplane such 
as curbs, gutters,  sidewalk, driveways, crosswalks,  striping,  roof overhangs  tree canopy, 
shrubs, spot elevations and contours for the entire area of work as shown on Exhibit A. 
The  survey  will  be  supplemented  with  conventional  surveying  to  show  missing 
information that was not picked up from the photogrammetry due to tree canopies. It will 
also show the property lines and easements based on title report to be provided. Existing 
on‐site  utilities  will  be  shown  based  on  available  plans  and  field  survey  as  described 
below.  
 
A color orthophoto will also be prepared during this portion of the scope. An orthophoto 
is a current, up‐to‐date color aerial photograph of the site, scanned at a high resolution, 
and geometrically  corrected  to  show a uniform scale  that can be used  to measure  true 
distances. It is an accurate representation of the Earth's surface, having been adjusted for 
topographic relief (much more accurate than what you see from Google Earth). 
  
2)  FIELD SURVEY FOR IMPROVEMENTS 
The field survey for improvements will consist of detailed design level topographic survey 
in the area shown on Exhibit A as limit of design level survey and will include;  

a) Location of trees 6” and larger, including approximate trunk diameter sizes 
b) Face of buildings 
c) Finished floor elevations of structures. 
d)  Utilities as described below 
e) Additional Ground elevations in areas of tree canopies 

 
3)  UTILITY SURVEY AND SUBSURFACE IMPROVEMENTS 
As  the  base  mapping  is  compiled  supplemental  field  survey  of  the  existing  utility 
infrastructure  within  the  areas  of  work  will  be  surveyed  including  but  not  limited  to, 
Sewer and Storm manholes including Inverts, water meters, water valves, gas valve, any 
underground  utility  paint  markings  and  any  additional  surface  utilities  that  can  be 
surveyed.  
 
Underground utilities will  be  located  by  Coast Wide Utility  Locators  and will work  as  a 
sub‐consultant  to  Kier  &  Wright  and  will  attempt  to  locate  all  detectable  utilities  as 
requested  according  to  the USA North Guidelines,  California  Code  Section  4216‐4216.9 
within the area of work. Please note that all underground utilities may not be able to be 
located, particularly plastic pipe. 
 

30 of 44



Proposal for Surveying Services                       Westlake Elementary School                            

 

 
KIER & WRIGHT CIVIL ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, INC.

 
3350 Scott Boulevard, Bldg. 22  Santa Clara, California 95054  408-727-6665  408-727-5641   - 3 - 

 

4)  COMPILATION OF FIELD SURVEYS AND RESEARCH DATA 
As above tasks are initiated our office personnel will begin compilation of all the record 
research  data.  This  work  includes  drafting  of  the  field  survey  data,  record  map 
information  and  utility  measurements  taken  in  the  field.  This  will  run  concurrently  to 
maximize  efficiency  and  reduce  lead‐time,  as  the  field  crews will  be  working  one  step 
ahead of office personnel as they deliver their field data.  
 
RELEVANT EXPERIENCE 
Kier  &  Wright  has  been  involved  with  schools  since  its  inception  in  1972.  We  have 
competed over 1,000 projects at different schools throughout the Bay Area and Central 
Valley.  The  following  is  a  brief  description  of  a  few  recent  projects  that  are  similar  in 
scope to what is being requested in this RFP. 
 
RELEVANT PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS 
Project Name:   Sacred Heart School ‐ Atherton 
 
Description:  Kier & Wright has been working with Sacred Heart since 1991. One 

of our recent projects consist of surveying there 61 Acres campus. 
Kier & Wright managed and  coordinating  the  entire  survey  Scope 
including  aerial  photogrammetry,  field  survey  of  entire  campus 
include  detailed  survey  for  track  and  field  renovation.  We  also 
completed a campus wide utility survey and keep it updated so the 
school  has  a  comprehensive  utility  survey. We  have  developed  a 
strong  relationship  with  Sacred  Heart  and  continue  providing 
excellent surveying services for the school. 

 
Project Name:   Bellarmine College Preparatory 
 
Description:  Kier  &  Wright  has  been  working  with  Bellarmine  since  1990. 

Recently  we  have  completed  over  13  projects  with  Bellarmine, 
these project consist of boundary survey,  topographic survey, civil 
engineering  design,  and  construction  staking  for  gymnasiums, 
academic  buildings,  theater/fine  arts  buildings  and  there  track  & 
fields.  We  have  developed  a  strong  relationship  with  Bellarmine 
and continue providing excellent surveying services for the school. 

 
Project Name:   Campbell Union High School District 
Description:  Kier & Wright  has  been  doing work  for  the  Campbell  Union High 

School District since 2005 and we have worked at every high school 
with  in  the district and have completed over 28 projects with  the 
district.  These  projects  consist  of  boundary  surveys,  topographic 
survey,  civil  engineering  design  and  construction  staking  for 
gymnasiums,  theater/fine  arts  building,  track  &  field,  solar 
installation  and  beautification  projects.  We  have  developed  a 
strong  relationship  with  the  Campbell  Union  High  School  District 
and continue providing excellent surveying service for the school. 

31 of 44



Proposal for Surveying Services                       Westlake Elementary School                            

 

 
KIER & WRIGHT CIVIL ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, INC.

 
3350 Scott Boulevard, Bldg. 22  Santa Clara, California 95054  408-727-6665  408-727-5641   - 4 - 

 

COMPANY PROFILE 
Kier  &  Wright  Civil  Engineers  &  Surveyors,  Inc.  has  provided  comprehensive  civil 
engineering  and  land  surveying  services  to  both  public  and  private  sector  clients  since 
1972.  Services offered include street and highway design, municipal consultation, utility 
engineering,  and  the  preparation  of  civil  engineering  plans  for  residential,  commercial 
and  industrial  site  developments  throughout  the  Bay  Area  and  Central  Valley.    Kier  & 
Wright has offices located in the cities of Santa Clara, Livermore, Manteca and Ventura. 
 
Kier  &  Wright  is  currently  staffed  by  150  employees,  including  seven  registered  civil 
engineers and eight licensed land surveyors.  Additional staff includes 23 civil engineering 
and  land  surveying  personnel  and  twelve  to  fifteen  surveying  crews  depending  on 
construction staking demands throughout the year. 
 
Kier & Wright  is  committed  to providing efficient,  cost  effective  services  to our  clients.  
Growth  of  the  firm  has  been  due  entirely  to  referrals,  repeat  business,  and  the  firm’s 
underlying  philosophy  that  demands  the  highest  quality  professional  service, 
responsibility to client needs, timeliness and efficiency. 
 
Kier  &  Wright's  management  continually  evaluates  and  updates  procedures  and 
equipment in order to maximize efficiency and productivity.   Procedural approaches are 
determined by management to make sure projects are executed as efficiently as possible. 
 
All  of  our  field  crews  have  well  equipped  trucks  with  all  the  tools  necessary  to  work 
efficiently and safely.   More specifically, each crew carries a robotic total station, digital 
level, rods and layout staffs and data collectors.   Our crews use the Trimble S‐6 and S‐7 
Robotic  Total  Stations  with  a  Trimble  TSC3  Data  Collector  equipped  with  the  latest 
Trimble Access software. We also have experienced fulltime GPS crews that use Trimble 
R‐8  and  r‐10  GNSS  receivers  and  Trimble  Business  Center  Software,  for  adjusting  all 
traverses both conventional and Static GPS. 
 
The office personnel are all equipped with state of  the art Dell Workstation Computers 
with Intel Xeon Processors, Running Windows 10 Professional with off‐site, cloud backed‐
up data servers. All computers are equipped with Autodesk Civil 3D 2017, Our Civil and 
Survey support staff has extensive experience with AutoCAD Civil 3D applications. 
 
 
 

32 of 44



Proposal for Surveying Services                       Westlake Elementary School                            

 

 
KIER & WRIGHT CIVIL ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, INC.

 
3350 Scott Boulevard, Bldg. 22  Santa Clara, California 95054  408-727-6665  408-727-5641   - 5 - 

 

KEY PERSONNEL 
Ryan M. Amaya, Survey Manager, Professional  Land Surveyor, State of California,  L.S. 
8134   
 
Mr.  Amaya  has  over  19  years  of  experience  in  the  Surveying  Industry.  Mr.  Amaya’s 
experience includes construction surveying, boundary surveying, mapping and subdivision 
work  related  to  land  development.    Specific  survey  experience  includes  construction 
staking,  topographic  surveys,  bench  mark  level  circuits,  elevation  monitoring  surveys, 
tentative maps, parcel maps, final maps, condominium plans, plats and legal descriptions, 
lot line adjustments, lot combinations, reversion to acreage maps, and ALTA/ASCM Land 
Title Surveys.   He received his Professional Land Surveyor License  in 2006 and has been 
with Kier & Wright since 1999. 
 
ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Ryan  would  act  as  a  project  manager  for  the  project.    He  would  provide  day‐to‐day 
support  to  the  client  and  related  consultants.    He would  also  be  in  charge  of  in‐house 
support  staff  including office‐drafting  staff.   All  coordination would be processed under 
his  supervision  and  guidance.    He  would  report  directly  to  the  client  throughout  the 
project duration. 
 
 
 
FEE BREAKDOWN 
SURVEY SCOPE OF SERVICES 
1.  Base Mapping / Orthophoto  $6,900
2.  Field Survey for Improvements  $5,700
3.  Utility Survey and subsurface improvements  $7,800
4.  Compilation of field survey and research data.  $6,500

Total Proposed Fee for Services:  $26,900
 
 
   
   
   

 
 
(End of Proposal) 
 
 
 

33 of 44



LIMITS OF
DESIGN
LEVEL
SURVEY

LIMITS OF
BASE

MAPPING

34 of 44

ramaya
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



 AGENDA ITEM:  6.1.1.4 
 
 

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Contract with Max Builders Inc. for Branciforte Small Schools 
 

MEETING DATE: December 6, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve contract with Max Builders Inc. for replacement of stair treads and risers at 
Branciforte Small Schools. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At the beginning of the school year, it was brought to our attention that repair or replacement 
was needed on the stair wells at each end of the Branciforte Small Schools main building due to 
wear.  The worn treads and risers are a safety issue.  
 
The Architects reviewed the project with a flooring company and determined that repair is not 
a viable solution due to the worn condition of many treads, and replacement is necessary. Max 
Builders is a flooring company that responded to our requests for estimates to replace the stair 
treads and risers.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$41,017.00 to be paid from Measure B bond funds. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 

Prepared by: Trevor Miller 

35 of 44



This page has been left blank



37 of 44



This page has been left blank



39
 o

f 4
4



40
 o

f 4
4



41
 o

f 4
4



42
 o

f 4
4



43
 o

f 4
4



44
 o

f 4
4


	Agenda 12-6-17 Final
	Minutes 11-27-17 Final
	Cvr Contracts Final
	Cvr Ifland Survey contract GA
	Ifland Survey Gault contract
	Cvr Kier & Wright contract MHMS
	Kier & Wright MHMS contract
	Cvr Kier & Wright contract WL
	Kier & Wright WL contract
	Cvr Max Builders contract SS
	Max Builders B40SS stairs contract
	SCCS Budget Development2



